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(For Part 1 Questions and Answers, posted on April 23, 2008, please see: http://www.nifl.gov/nifl/grants_contracts/docs/ED-08-R-0040QA.doc )
A.  Questions regarding the current system
A.1. What is the size/page count of the NIFL domain?

A.2. What is the total size of the site? What is the total number of pages on the site?

The www.nifl.gov domain is approximately 500+ pages. 

It is difficult to give an estimate on the total size of the site, since this depends on the information in the database, multimedia and size of applications.  

A.3. On average, how much bandwidth does the NIFL website require? Also, what is the website traffic? Related to video hosting/streaming, what is the size/number of the videos?

Average utilization is approx 60 GB transfer/Month.

A.4. How many hits does the website receive?

The approximate number of hits for fiscal year to date (Oct 07 – May 08) is 26,600,000.

 

A.5. Will the Government please provide a Bill of Materials (BOM) for the current infrastructure (number of physical machines, identifying the purpose)?

A.6.  Will the Government please provide the list of Government-furnished equipment (GFE) that is transitioned to the new contractor, and any new equipment (hardware, software) required / expected in transition?

All information and list of material and equipment will be provided to the contractor during the Transition Meeting. 
B.  Federal Regulations

B.1.  What specific federal regulations are required for hosting of the Institute's system?

B.2.  What specific federal regulations are required to ensure the security of the website, database, and search engine?

B. 3.  What specific federal security policies and standards are required for the Institute's system?

The system is currently FISMA compliant. Offeror should have knowledge of FISMA regulations and procedures. 

C.  Questions regarding Co-Location

C.1.  On page 1, 3rd paragraph of Attachment A (Solicitation document) it is written:

"... The Institute's web servers and network equipment are housed at a co-location facility, which provides a secure environment and Internet access..."  On page 6, task 5 Hosting the online system, it is written: "...The contractor shall host, maintain and update the online system and provide Internet access through an off-site facility to the Institute's servers, without any interruption..."  Is the co-location facility to be provided by the contractor? 

C.2.  Is the contractor required to provide hosting services for www.nifl.gov or only provide hosting for the On-Line System and web events?
C.3. The Government referred to an infrastructure facility located in Annapolis, MD. Is this a Contractor facility or owned by Government? 

C.4. Does the Government have any restrictions on the location of this facility or it is sufficient if it meets Federal Security requirements?

 C.5. Is there any option for relocating the hardware from the current location? When does the agreement with the co-location provider expire? 

C.6.  Who is currently hosting the servers now? Will the contractor have to move the servers to the contractor's location/facility? 

C.7.  Will we need to physically relocate the servers/boxes off their current site?
The co-location facility is provided by the contractor. The facility should meet federal regulations and security guidelines.  The current contractor is has an agreement in place with AlwaysOnline, which is a hosting facility in Annapolis, MD and the agreement has been renewed annually.  

The offeror’s decision to relocate the hardware should be addressed in their transition plan to ensure that no interruption to service is experienced.  The offeror shall assume responsibility for the system upon contract start. The current co-location contract expires November 1, 2008.

C.8.  Will the development team and testing teams require any special access to the servers?

Access to the facility is secure and will be established during the transition phase.
C.9. Is there a requirement to have the servers to be co-located with any other servers/desktops/internal networks?
The servers will not need to be co-located with other desktop or internal networks. 

D. Questions related to Development

D.1.  ONGOING TASKS 2.1 indicates there might be new application development required. (2.1.a,2.1.d ). Does the scope of the contract include software development also? If so how many hours of development work the government anticipates for these efforts?

The current requirement is for web-based based application designs.  The Statement of Work (SOW) provides information required for the level of effort required.
E.  Questions related to Website

E.1.  What is the minimum and maximum number of approval levels required before content updates to the website are pushed live?

Information should not be posted to the site unless approved by the Institute.  
E.2.  Discussion List: Is the contractor expected to upgrade the list server to a newer version of mailman or to a more capable product? If so what are the new requirements for the list server that is currently not supported? 

The Institute does not have plans to upgrade the list server to a newer version of mailman, the offeror can provide justification and recommendations regarding the benefits of upgrading the mailman server.

E.3 Will the Government please indicate that the Grants and Events database need to be updated on a weekly basis. Can Government clarify the approximate volume and frequency of the updates?

Volume and frequency can be found but reviewing the grants and events databases.  The results are available online: 

GRANTS: http://www.nifl.gov/cgi-bin/lincs/search/gsearch/dbsearch.cgi?action=Show%20Results
NEWS: http://www.nifl.gov/cgi-bin/lincs/news_flashes/news_flashes.cgi 

F. Questions related to Content Management System (CMS)
F.1. Does the agency currently use any content management product? Is there a development team that will migrate the current content to the new content management system? If not, should the contractor account for migrating the current content or only new contents will be managed through the CMS system?  
F.2.  Is the goal to migrate the existing site into a CMS, with the primary contractor being expected to provide training to NIFL users? How many NIFL content editors do you anticipate?

F.3.  Will the Government please indicate that the Content Management System (CMS) be implemented in first five months. What is the scope here? Is it the Government’s intention to migrate the entire static and/or dynamic content serving http://www.nifl.gov is ported/converted into CMS or a phased migration? If so, can the Government clarify what applications/modules are expected to go first?

F.4.  Will the Government please clarify the number of users/stakeholders of the system that would approve and publish the content in CMS?

There is currently no Content Management System in place.  It is expected that the contractor will migrate content from the www.nifl.gov site to the new CMS.  Training for approximately 3-6 content editors will be required.

 F.5.  Will the Government please share the rationale behind a CMS powered by PHP technology?

The use of PHP as the preferred delivery method of content is based on the availability of support resources as well as the common use of PHP. The use of PHP ties into the use of open source resources utilized throughout the Institute’s network.
G. Questions related to Web Streaming
G.1. When providing support for web streaming events, is the contractor required to do the actual filming at the events or only manage the video streaming for the site?

The contractor is required to provide all the support for web streaming events.  The current contractor uses another vendor to assist with production, filming, and streaming the event to a live audience.  The offeror is required to use guidelines as detailed in the FAR part 44 regarding subcontracting policies and procedures. 

H.  Question regarding Page Limits

H.1. We do not believe a limit of six double-spaced pages for the Technical Proposal will allow enough detail for the Government to make an adequate and realistic evaluation, particularly since the Statement of Work is eleven single-spaced pages, and since the technical and management approach constitute 75% of the evaluation factors. Will the Government expand the page limit for the Technical Proposal to twenty single-spaced pages?

The Institute has changed the page limit requirement from 10 pages double-spaced to 10 pages single-spaced. (See Revised Instructions to Offerors dated May 5, 2008: http://www.nifl.gov/nifl/grants_contracts/docs/ED-08-R-0040QA.doc).  

Offerors may include appendices to provide graphs, charts or other supporting information; however, the technical narrative is where the offeror should address the evaluation criteria that reviewers use to evaluate your application.  The page limit requirement does not apply to the appendices and resumes of key personnel.
I.  OTHER QUESTIONS

I.1.  Should the contractor include the cost of the license of the COTS software in the proposal or will the government pay the licensing cost directly? 

All costs should be incurred by the contractor.

I.2.  Does the agency require that all personnel working on this project be US citizens? Is there any level of security clearance required? 

The Institute is a federal agency and requires that all team members must be eligible to receive minimum clearance levels as per government National Agency Check with Inquiries guidelines. NACI clearance level is required for this contract. All contracting personnel must undergo an e-QIP investigation, provide a declaration of employment and fingerprinting card, for more details, please see SOW.  Non-US citizens can not obtain a security clearance for this contract.  

I.3. Is the work to be performed on the Government site?

It is not necessary for the work to be performed at the Government site.

I.4.  Is the incumbent contractor eligible to bid on this solicitation?

Any contractor with a current GSA Schedule rating is eligible to apply. 

I.5.  Is a set-aside for small businesses. We are a small business, and we have the expert skill needed to work on this project, however we do not have a large department of proposal writers, and thus cannot compete against larger companies. If this solicitation is not currently designated as a small business set-aside, would you consider making it one? 
The Solicitation for Technical Services and Maintenance Support is not a small business set aside.  However, the Institute will review all proposals based on technical and cost considerations most advantageous to the Government regardless of company size.  
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